ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
HOUSE TRANSPCRTATI ON STANDI NG COWMM TTEE
SENATE TRANSPCORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 17, 2013
1: 03 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON
Representati ve Peggy WIson, Chair
Representati ve Eric Feige
Representative Lynn Gattis
Represent ati ve Doug | saacson
Representati ve Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON
Senat or Denni s Egan, Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson, Vice Chair
Senat or Anna Fai rcl ough
Senator Cick Bishop
Senator Hollis French
VEMBERS ABSENT
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON
Representative Craig Johnson
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Beth Kerttul a
COW TTEE CALENDAR
OVERVI EW DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATI ON & PUBLI C FACI LI TI ES
- HEARD

ALASKA MARI NE H GHWAY - NEW DI RECTI ON ON VESSEL ACQUI SI TI ON

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES -1- January 17, 2013



- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER

PATRI CK KEMP, Commi ssi oner

Departnment of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified during the overview of the
Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&F) and
answered questions during the discussion of the changes to the
Al aska Cl ass Ferry (ACF).

CAPTAI N JOHN FALVEY, Ceneral Manager

Ket chi kan O fice

Mari ne Hi ghway System

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered during the discussion of the
changes to the Al aska O ass Ferry (ACF).

RUEBEN YOST, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
the Al aska C ass Ferry (ACF).

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 03:58 PM

CHAIR PEGGY WLSON called the joint neeting of the House and
Senate Transportation Standing Conmittees to order at 1:03 p.m
Present at the call to order were Representatives Feige, Gattis,
Krei ss-Tonkins, Lynn, Isaacson, and P. WIlson and Senators
Dyson, Fairclough, Bishop, French, and Egan.

Overvi ew Departnment of Transportation & Public Facilities

1: 05: 47 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON announced the first order of business would be
an overview by the Departnent of Transportation & Public

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES - 2- January 17, 2013



Facilities (DOT&PF). She asked the commi ssioner to review the
departnment's staff changes and di scuss changes on the new ferry

system which has created interest. She noted public testinony
will not be taken today, but will be taken in the future.
1:07: 24 PM

PATRI CK KEWMP, Conmi ssioner, Departnment of Transportation &
Public Facilities (DOT&F), introduced hinmself and provided a
brief work history with the departnent, noting he began as a
"rear chainman”" on a |and surveying crew. He retired in 2006,
but came back to the DOT&PF in 2011 as a deputy conm ssioner.

COWM SSI ONER KEMP offered to introduce his new nmanagenent team

shortly. He turned to a PowerPoint overview and briefly
di scussed slides, beginning wth the statutory requirenents
[slides 2-3]. He said the DOT&PF is the entity that plans,
designs, builds, and nmintains transportation infrastructure for
public highways, facilities, airports, ferry termnals. He
characterized the departnent as having a strong contracting
presence, with a capital budget approaching $1 billion annually.

He also said the DOT&PF is an expert at delivering federal aid
progranms, as well as other general fund prograns.

1: 09: 18 PM

COWM SSI ONER KEMP turned to the DOT&PF' s mission [slide 4]. The
DOT&PF's mssion is to get Alaska noving through service and
i nfrastructure. The DOT&PF works to provide safe and efficient
novenent of people and goods; access to state service; and to
open opportunities for exploration and devel opnent. He said the
"Roads to Resources" programis fully supported by the governor
and the departnment works in partnership with the state DNR &
Al aska Industrial Devel opnent and Export Authority (AIDEA) to
acconplish transporting resources to tidewater. He recalled
testinmony last year, in ternms of Canada's Yukon devel opnment,
which is poised to "explode" in the mneral markets. The Yukon
provi nce has infrastructure plus access to tidewater in Skagway.
He offered that Alaska has trenendous resources in Western
Al aska and throughout the state. He said the DOT&PF is actively
working on its "Roads to Resources (R2R)" program

1:10: 21 PM
COWMM SSI ONER KEMP di scussed the DOT&PF' s organi zation [slide 5].

He said in Decenber 2012 he was appointed comm ssioner. He
related he learned in 2011 that DOT&PF s deputy conm ssioners

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES - 3- January 17, 2013



had been assigned nodes of transportation; however, when he |eft
the departnment in 2006 deputy conm ssioners were part of the
executive team whose role was to oversee the departnent and
coll aborate with the comm ssioner. He related the nanagenent
structure changes to nodal deputy conmm ssioners neant a separate
deputy conm ssioner was assigned to aviation, the Al aska Marine
H ghway System (AVHS), and hi ghways. He offered his belief the
nodal system didn't function well since it created "silos"
within the comm ssioner's office and the nanagenent structure
hanpered teamworKk. He reported he prefers a nanagenent nodel
simlar to the way sone other state agencies operate. He
briefly touched on the deputy conm ssioner's specifications,
including their rmanagenent role in conjunction wth the
comm ssi oner; however he enphasized day-to-day managenent woul d
fall to the division directors within the regions. He offered
his preference to enploy a broad oversight approach for the
departnment and he said he does not want [deputy comm ssioners]
to mcronanage the regions. He highlighted one controversy
which has arisen was he did not confer wth the Marine
Transportation Advisory Board (MIAB) on his decision to change
t he deputy conm ssioner for the AWMHS. He related his intent to
have the AVHS s general manager, Captain John Falvey, run the
marine highways with the conm ssioner's office providing broad
over si ght.

1:13: 45 PM

COM SSI ONER KEMP introduced his three deputy conm ssioners:
Kim Rice, deputy conmm ssioner, Program Devel opnent, Statew de
Mai nt enance and Operations (M&O), [Statew de Equipnent fleet,

and Statewide Facilities]. She has been with the departnent for
over 30 years. He identified Steve Hatter as deputy
conm ssioner for Statewide Aviation, including rural airport

oversight, as well as the Alaska International Airport System
Rueben Yost, deputy commi ssioner of divisions including Al aska
Marine Hi ghway System (AMVHS), Measur enent Standards and
Commercial Vehicle Enforcenent, and a new system "Engineering

Automation.” He said the engineering automation function is an
inportant function since it ties the departnent to geographic
information system (QYS) and ot her comput er i nformation
t echnol ogy. He characterized the engineering automation

function as inportant since it could assist the departnent with
t he federal highway managenent system

1: 15: 08 PM

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES -4- January 17, 2013



COWM SSI ONER KEMP introduced the DOT&PF s regional directors:
Steve Titus, Northern Region; Rob Canpbell, Central Region; and
Al Cl ough, Southeast Region. He noted that the Adm nistrative
Services director, Mary Siroky, reports directly to him as well
as Connie MKenzie, legislative |iaison. He identified systens
directors, including: Jeff OQtesen, Program Devel opnent; Roger
Heal y, chief engineer, Statew de Design & Engineering Services;
Dan Sm t h, Measur enent St andar ds &  Conmer ci al Vehicl e
Enforcenent; and Murray Wal sh, Roads to Resources (R2R) manager
serving as special assistant to the conm ssioner.

1:16: 42 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON understood Captain John Falvey "heads up" the
AMHS. She asked whet her Conmi ssioner Kenp had consulted wth
Marine Transportation Advisory Board (MIAB) prior to assigning a
director [or a deputy commssioner] over the Al aska Marine
H ghway System (AVHS) since there is a statutory requirenent to
do so.

COWM SSI ONER KEMP acknowl edged he was aware of the statutory

requirenment. He responded that he sent a letter to MIAB to
explain a deputy conm ssioner was no |onger [solely] assigned to
the AMHS. He clarified that al | of DOT&PF' s  deputy

comm ssioners would have knowl edge of the AWVHS, wth one
comi ssi oner having a broader know edge base of the system He
reiterated his intention is to have DOI&F s directors manage
division operations, which ultimately would provide a better
structure for the departnment.

CHAIR P. WLSON understood the inportance of conmunication and

t he necessity of avoi di ng i sol ating "sil os" in t he
conmi ssioner's office. She referred to a legal opinion in
menber s’ packets from Hlary Martin, | egi slative counsel,

| egi sl ative Legal Services, [dated January 16, 2013]. The | egal
opi nion points out the intent of AS 19.65.180 (a), which is that
the MIAB should have been consulted on this inportant decision
[wWwth respect to assigning a new deputy comm ssioner, M. Yost
to oversee the AVHS]. She said the statutory intent is to allow
public input in the selection of a nanager of the AMHS.
Further, the attorney general agrees with the statutory intent,
she said. Wil e she understood the comm ssioner's nmanagenent
deci sions, she again pointed out the |egislature passed the
statute to allow the public input into the AVHS via the MIAB.
Since the AVHS has inproved during the MIAB' s tenure, she
expressed her hope that the departnment would continue to seek
counsel from MIAB, which is what the |aw intended. She said she

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES - 5- January 17, 2013



wanted to make certain everyone is aware of the [statutory
requi renent].

1:20: 20 PM

SENATOR EGAN interjected coastal comunities previously provided
input via the Al aska Regi onal Devel opnent Organi zation (ARDORS),
Sout hwest Al aska Muni ci pal Conference (SWAMC), and the Sout heast
Conf er ence. He wanted to nmake certain the conm ssioner would
listen to the coastal communities served by the AWMHS, would
provide input to MIAB, and would neet with the MIAB to determ ne
the direction of the marine highway system

COW SSI ONER KEMP answered "absolutely.™ He said there would
not be any change to that makeup. He offered his belief that
MIAB would [ultimately] be happier with the new structure.
Further, Captain Falvey and his experts can also attend MIAB
neetings and thus, the AMHS would have greater exposure and

t ransparency. Wiile he did not wsh to further discuss the
details of departnment managenent's prior |evel of functioning,
he said he thought the problens were resolved. He assured

menbers that the departnment would continue to coordinate wth
MIAB and would also consult with MIAB on the general manager's
position; however, he expressed his intention to take the deputy
conmi ssioners to a new |evel. He said he wants his departnent
operate collaboratively, simlar to the way other state
departnments, such as the Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR),
Department of Admnistration (DOA), and the Departnent of Law
(DAL) operate. He understood [the committee] has concerns that
he is not follow ng the statutes; however, he advised nenbers he
had consulted with the DOT&PF' s attorneys and "felt he was on

good ground and wanted to nake the selection.”™ He acknow edged
he had not read the legislative counsel's opinion; however, the
DOT&PF' s attorneys will review it and report back to him I n

response to comment, he advised that the DOI&PF s attorney
al ready has a copy of the legislative counsel's neno [of January
16, 2013].

CHAIR P. WLSON reiterated her concern, but said she feels
confortable with the comm ssioner's coments, noting "the proof
is in the pudding” so she would continue to nonitor the
si tuation.
1:24:32 PM

COWM SSI ONER KEMP turned to DOT&PF s assets and FY 14 operating
budget [slide 6-7]. He related the DOT&PF has 3,186 staff, owns

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES - 6- January 17, 2013



and maintains 5,601 mles of roads, 84 nmintenance stations, 256
airports, 7 weigh stations, 11 ferries and 35 ferry termnals.
The operating budget is approxinmately $635 mllion. He said the
capital budget is approximately $1 billion, wth over $3-5
billion in capital projects, although the figure is difficult to
arrive at since it constantly changes. He reported he is taking
"a stab" at the total transportation needs for infrastructure -
at approximately $20 billion - which includes road construction
and mai nt enance.

1:25: 44 PM

SENATOR FRENCH asked for clarification on the several billion
under devel opnent in capital projects - whether the projects are
ones funded by the | egislature but are ones not yet conpl et ed.

COW SSI ONER KEMP answered the DOT&PF frequently develops a
project, but does not ask for construction spending authority
until the departnent is ready to proceed. In further response

Comm ssioner Kenp agreed the projects were not funded but it
represents the potential project.

SENATOR FRENCH understood the conmi ssioner was referring to
proj ects nearing funding, but not yet submtted to the governor.

COM SSI ONER KEMP agr eed.

COW SSIONER KEMP turned to nobst imediate challenges [slide
10], identifying "Myving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century
(MAP-21) - Transformng the Way We Build, Mintain, and Manage
Qur Nation's H ghways" as the nost challenging for the
departnment. He said the DOT&PF will need the legislature' s help
fill in the gap for local comunity projects that were
[previously] in the State Transportation |nprovenent Program
(STIP) but are missing; otherwise the DOI&F nust conpletely
give up on sonme projects. The federal highway MAP-21 renpved
funding from local conmunity roads and redirected it to the
Nat i onal H ghway Systens (NHS), such as the Seward H ghway, the
Par ks H ghway, Dalton H ghway, Alaska H ghway, and ferries in
Al aska - which conprise Alaska's main arteries and corridors.
He said projects nost hurt are roads such as the old denn
H ghway and the Douglas H ghway. He was uncertain of total, but
estimated it at approximately $200-400 million.

1: 28: 10 PM

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES -7 January 17, 2013



COM SSI ONER KEMP, in response to Chair WIlson's conments that
MAP- 21 woul d be discussed at a subsequent hearing, continued his
present ati on. He turned to the DOI&PF s information sources
[slide 11].

SENATOR DYSON noted one slide in nenbers' packets on ACF s
change in direction, which references a fall 2011, University of
Fai rbanks (UAF) study that was published. Addi tionally, he
recalled that fornmer Representative Taylor had prepared a plan
and the inmmediate past AWVHS director also had devel oped plans
for system efficiencies. He expressed an interest in obtaining
a copy of these reports.

COW SSIONER KEMP related the UAF study is on the DOI&PF s
website, but he was unsure about other studies although he was
aware of them

1:29:42 PM

SENATOR EGAN asked Conmmi ssioner Kenp to address drastic changes
to Shakwak funding [highway construction funding accord between
the U S. and Canada]. He offered his belief the fundi ng changes
could seriously affect the transportation system as it transits
Canada.

COM SSIONER KEMP related that M. Qtesen, Director, Program
Devel opnment woul d brief [the comrittee] on this in detail |ater;
however, he estimated that Al aska |ost $70-100 million annual
Shakwak fundi ng, whereas Canada conpletely lost its Shakwak

f undi ng. He pointed out the Federal H ghway Adm nistration
(FHWA) MAP-21 is a two-year bill so he hoped that some problens
could still be addressed. He related Alaska is unique in that

it is the only state separated by a foreign country between
regions of the state so it seens reasonable the federal
government should help fund the corridor.

SENATOR EGAN, in response to a coment, agreed the late U S.
Senator Ted Stevens and fornmer U S. Senator Mke G avel were
instrunmental in securing Shakwak funding, which has inproved the
hi ghway systemto Beaver Creek.

CHAIR P. WLSON, in response to a question on aviation, asked
Senator Egan to hold his question on rmunicipal and state-owned
airports wuntil next week when the commttee would discuss
avi ation.

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES - 8- January 17, 2013



Al aska Marine H ghway - new direction on Vessel Acquisition from
the Al aska Class Ferry

1:31:49 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON announced that the final order of business would
be to discuss the Alaska Mrine H ghway Systemis new direction
on Vessel Acquisition fromthe Al aska C ass Ferry (ACF).

1: 32: 06 PM

COWMWM SSI ONER KEMP referred to a white paper in nenbers' packets,
titled "Alaska Cass Ferry: Project Overview and Change in
Direction." He offered to provide the background information on
the Alaska Cass Ferry (ACF). The project began in 2005-2006,
at a tinme in which the departnent had concluded a shuttle ferry
system would provide better service, i ncreased capacity,
additional flexibility, and nore ridership opportunities at a
| oner cost, in sone cases. The key to a shuttle ferry systemis
a 12-hour day, he said. He pointed to the success of the
private Inter-Island Ferry Authority (IFA) on the Prince of
Wal es Island, which provides a reliable shuttle ferry system
Additionally, the AVHS s MV Lituya operates between Metl akatla
and Ketchi kan and the AVHS' s fast ferries provide fast passenger
service. To sonme extent, these vessels represent the future to
replace Alaska's naminline ferries, he said. He offered his
belief that in sonme instances it is far nore cost effective to
replace a mainline ferry with a roll-on, roll-off (RORO ferry.

COWM SSI ONER KEMP said in 2006, the DOT&PF devel oped a Request
for Proposal (RFP) to develop a RORO ferry, noting a copy |[of
the federal-aid "Project Agreenent and Approval/Authorization,"”
signed 5/19/2006 by the U S. Departnent of Transportation] in
menbers' packets. The RFP's criteria was for a RORO passenger
ferry wwth an overall length 255-305 feet, a passenger capacity
of 450, vehicle capacity of 48-60, and bow | oading capacity. He
enphasi zed the inportance of the bowl oading function for a true
RORO service since it allows vehicles to quickly be |oaded and
unl oaded.

1: 36: 11 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON referred to the Alaska Cass Ferry's (ACF)
hi story in nmenbers' packets.

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES - 9- January 17, 2013



COWMM SSI ONER KEMP cont i nued. He said the DOT&PF procured and
selected a firm based on the RORO concept. He said, "Sonehow,
over the next few years the project changed. The bow door was
gone. The stateroons were added to the vessel. It was becom ng
a much nore costly vessel. Instead of a crew of 5-10, we were
| ooking at a crew of pushing 20-25." As Captain Falvey has
said, in determning crew for vessels the AVHS uses a formula
and multiplier of 2.3 to determine the total nunber of people
required to run a vessel for a 24-hour operation - also taking
into account factors such as shift changes. He enphasi zed the
DOT&PF wanted to partially nove from a nmainline ferry to a
different nodel - to faster ferries. However, the ferry project
had "norphed” into a second-class AVHS vessel, or "Aurora C ass"
vessel . He outlined the "norphed" changes, which did not neet
the departnent's intent, including that the vessel had increased
to 350 feet, contained crew stateroons, but not passenger
st at er oons.

1:38:27 PM
SENATOR FRENCH asked Conmi ssioner Kenp to elaborate on the
deci sion-making process to better wunderstand how the change

occurred.

COWM SSI ONER KEMP suggested [the vessel changes] could mainly be

attributed to public involvenent. The departnment, through its
public process, found users wanted nore anenities, although sone
changes occurred internally. He noted not all personnel agree
with the concept of fast ferries. He said he was unsure exactly
how it happened. He characterized the changed project as
simlar to DOT&F s plans to fix pavenent on a 20-mle road, but
the public indicates they want sidewalks, lumnaries, four
| anes. Thus, the project encounters "project scope creep." He

acknowl edged sone people wonder how the departnent noved so
quickly from an Alaska Cass Ferry (ACF) to a shuttle ferry
system w thout public invol venent. He answered by stating his
primary concern has been that the project changed from a RORO
shuttle ferry to one that becane alnost a nmainline vessel
W t hout stateroons. He further understood an arbitrary decision
was nmade to add 50 feet to the vessel. He reiterated he was
unsure how it had happened.

1:41: 28 PM
CAPTAIN JOHN FALVEY, General Manager, Ketchikan Ofice, Marine

H ghway System Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities
(DOT&PF), said he has been the general nmanager of the AVHS for

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES -10- January 17, 2013



nine years. He agreed the ACF project started - as Conm ssioner
Kenp nentioned - as a shuttle ferry concept, but as tinme |apsed
the DOT&PF decided to hold an aggressive public process. The
DOT&PF crisscrossed the state holding public nmeetings and taking
comment, including web-based conmment. In response to a
guestion, Captain Falvey said it was in 2008-2010. He said the
DOT&PF had an aggressive internal steering commttee conprised

of shoreside and vessel enployees. He further recalled deputy
conm ssioners tried to incorporate changes to the ACF project
based on public comrent. He agreed that the project "norphed"

and slowy got nore costly than the initial $120 nillion
proj ected cost.

1:43: 07 PM

SENATOR FRENCH suggested an enornous anount of docunentation
must be available spanning the three-year process that would
show the changes from the RORO ferry to a l|arger vessel. He
suggested sone docunentation would help |[the commttee]
understand the process the departnent used, in particular, given
the immense public interest in the project. "That's ny
request,” he said.

1: 43: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON, as forner mayor of North Pole, said he
heard from other nmayors and interested parties who comrended
the DOT&PF' s process, but also expressed frustration at the
DOT&PF' s unil ateral decision [to make the change from the ACF].
The mayors and communities did not realize the project had
increased to two ferries or that specifications changed, such as

to a bowloading vessel. Further, the myors and parties
questioned whether the vessels would be seaworthy. From his
initial perspective, it seened the communities would gain two
additional ports of call and two ferries, he also said. He

asked what public process was used to increase the ACF project
to two vessels and whether the passenger concerns on the sea
wort hi ness of the vessels [was valid].

COM SSIONER  KEMP answered that there wasn't any public
i nvol venent to make the change back to a shuttle ferry. He said
the decision was a mnmanagenent decision; however, the governor
was fully engaged in [the decision-making] process. He
suggested nmenbers allow him to continue his testinony since he
woul d nore fully describe how the decision was made.

1: 45: 36 PM

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES -11- January 17, 2013



SENATOR EGAN, asking to followup on Representative |saacson's
question, understood the project "norphed' over the years, but
in a few hours the ACF project had "norphed" again wthout any
comunity input or any input fromthe MIAB. He asked the reason
the MIAB, with statutory authority, was not consulted on the
adm nistration's decision to change to the current [shuttle
ferry] design w thout any public input.

COM SSIONER KEMP reiterated he hoped his explanation would
becone cl ear as he continued his testinony.

1:46: 34 PM

SENATOR DYSON asked whether anything in the bargaining unit
agreenents woul d work agai nst reducing crew size and hours.

CAPTAIN FALVEY answered no. He offered his belief [no
opposition] had conme fromthe bargaining unit. He explained the
crew level is controlled by the United States Coast Guard (USCG
and relates to how safely ships can be evacuated. He referred
to certificates of inspections and crewing levels as being
determ ned by the USCG

1:47:27 PM

SENATOR DYSON assuned significant savings were acquired by going
to a 12-hour or less crew and was also related to crew quarters.

CAPTAI N FALVEY answered that the AMHS operates a |arge cross
section of vessels, such as the notor vessel (MYV) Colunbia,
whi ch operates with a crew of 60 during the summer, while the
MV Lituya operates with only 5-6 crew Thus, crew |levels
depend on specific boat and route. He acknow edged [in sone
i nstances] the total crew could also depend on union contracts.
For exanmple, it mght require tw crews to run two smaller
vessels operating in Lynn Canal during the summer, whereas in
the winter one crew m ght operate only one vessel on a different
schedul e. He added that crew levels also vary depending on
season and the schedul e.

1:49: 07 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON asked the conm ssioner to keep track of the
guestions nenbers have asked. She expressed concern that sone
passengers |[may experience travel interruptions]. She said

passengers traveling on the Lynn Canal or Prince of Wales routes

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES -12- January 17, 2013



coul d enbark on bigger vessels, but it would create problens for
ridership in Southeast Alaska if a mainline ferry did not stop

in Wangell. She detailed that these passengers nust take a
short ferry to Petersburg, ride a bus for 30 mles, and then
take another short ferry [to reach their destination]. She

pointed out if connections didn't nmesh these passengers would
need to spend the night.

1:50: 17 PM

SENATOR FAI RCLOUGH asked to recast the setting. She said this
state is facing a revenue shortfall and as the governor and the
adm nistration is reviewing capital or operating investnents the
state nmust look at what it can afford. If the public is not
i nformed about a spending cap they may want additional anenities
such as adding stateroons. She said the state would soon be at
a point in making decisions between what is "needed" or "wanted"
and she hoped the audience would understand that Al aska's oi
production has been declining, revenue 1is declining, and
operating expenses are increasing. The indicated the state
woul d need to pencil out the "math" to have a heal t hy econony.

COWM SSI ONER KEMP said in August 2012, when he was appointed as
acting commi ssioner, Governor Parnell asked him to |look at the
costs for the ACF. Al though he had been working in the
comm ssioner's office [at the tine the project was noving
forward] he was not aware of the vessel concept or that the ACF
project was over budget. He recalled a [legislative] hearing in
February 2012 in which the departnment stated the cost of the
vessel would exceed $120 nillion. The governor specifically
wanted [the departnment] to reduce the cost to bring the project
under schedule; and in response, Captain Falvey attenpted to so,
including [downsizing the project] by renoving the "ride
control" and other anenities, he added.

1: 53: 40 PM

CAPTAI N FALVEY, in response to a question, related that as the
project got "deeper into functional design," the departnent
worked to reduce the actual vessel construction costs. He
explained that nunerous costs conprise the $120 nillion
estimate, not just the shipyard costs to build the ship. In an
ef fort to curb costs, the departnment reduced the fin
stabilization system which keeps the boat fromrolling, renoved
an elevator, and reduced galley conponents, including the
cafeteria. As the DOT&PF reviewed the functional design - which
is at 40 percent and is not lost - the departnment realized that

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES -13- January 17, 2013



the ship could not be built for the $120 mllion budgeted. I n

response to a question, he explained that "ride control"” is the
same as "fins," which hydraulically fold out, simlar to w ngs
on an airplane, to control vessel roll. He said the fins do not

control pitch - the up and down notion - but control the roll,
whi ch contributes to seasickness.

1:55: 47 PM

COWM SSI ONER KEMP continued. He related the DOT&PF heard runors
from the shipyard the cost would exceed $120 nillion. I n
response to a question, the conm ssioner explained that he
| egi slature decided sonme time ago sone admnistrative costs

should be charged to capital projects. He said the overhead
rates vary based on the type of project, fromfacilities at two
per cent to hi ghways at five per cent . Addi tionally,

adm nistrative add-on costs for prelimnary engineering (PE)
i ncl ude design and construction engineering (CE), which is also
assessed for each project. He estimted the PE overhead at $7-8
mllion and CE overhead at $6 million for the ACF project. I n
response to a question, he agreed the total would be $14 nillion
in [PE and CE] administrative costs.

1: 58: 45 PM

COWM SSI ONER KEMP cont i nued. He said the DOT&PF wrote a letter
to the shipyard requesting cost information. The shipyard
responded it did not have total cost information, but had only
repeated runors it was hearing from the "industry." The
department subsequently asked for and obtained two independent
cost estimates - from the Ketchikan shipyard and the consultant
- which cane in wth a project estimate between $150-170
mllion, substantially over the $120 mllion funding. In
response to a question, Conm ssioner Kenp clarified the total
figures included the DOT&PF s adm nistrative costs.

1: 59: 52 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON acknow edged it would be pretty hard to
calculate a project's overall cost when the ACF project was only
at the 40 percent design phase.

COWMM SSI ONER KEMP agr eed. He said the DOT&F concluded the
costs could not be reduced [on the ACF project]. He reported to
the governor the budgetary cost overrun estimates and at that
poi nt the departnment began to seek other alternatives. At this
point, he said he discovered the original procurenent was for a

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES -14- January 17, 2013



RORO shuttle ferry concept. The governor's office recalled a
project on the shelf would work in Southeast Alaska; however,
t he DOT&PF was unable to produce one. The DOT&PF subsequently
hired a consultant, who was also unsuccessful in finding [a
suitable substitute]. However, the consultant was famliar with
and understood the shuttle ferry concept and [devel oped]
prelimnary figures for the concept. In 2006, the estimted
cost of one shuttle ferry was $30 nmillion, he recall ed. The
governor supported the concept change from the ACF [to two
shuttle ferries] since it was quite clear shuttle ferries could
deliver nore vehicles and provide nore capacity wth |ower
capital and operating costs.

2:02: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked for clarification on the type of
shuttle ferry estimated at $30 mllion and whether the design is
conparable to Washington state ferries or if the vessel would
have a deeper hull design.

COWM SSI ONER KEMP answered no, a ferry such as the Washington
state ferries won't work in Alaska; instead, the design concept
would be for a heavy seas vessel, approximately 280 feet in
| ength, which is sonmewhat | onger than the MV LeConte.

SENATOR DYSON clarified what Conmmi ssioner Kenp is referring to

is a vessel that with doors that open sideways. Addi tionally,
the vessel would also have doors on the stern. He characterized
this type of vessel as quite seaworthy. He asked for

clarification on whether the proposed shuttle ferries would have
a side-loading feature.

COW SSI ONER KEMP agreed the ferries would have a side-I|oading
feature. He said the Juneau to Haines route is the nost
challenging run, in terns of time, and the RORO design helps
[reduce | oading and unl oading tine].

2:05: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS asked which ports in Southeast
Al aska can acconmpdate a RORO desi gn.

CAPTAIN FALVEY answered that the DOT&PF could use the fast

shuttle ferries in Juneau and could use the vessels in Haines
with sonme nodifications necessary.

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES - 15- January 17, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS asked for the approximate cost of
re-rigging a ferry termnal to accommodate a RORO vessel.

RUEBEN YOST, Deputy Conmi ssioner, Departnment of Transportation &
Public Facilities (DOT&PF), answered that the re-rigging cost
woul d be approximately $15-20 million [per facility], although
the departnent has not specifically |ooked at detail ed designs
to do so. He reported that the DOT&PF does not currently have a

design for the [shuttle ferry]. He clarified the current status
of the [ACF] project, noting the DOT&F has announced a change
to the design concept. The design team has been suspended and

the DOT&PF is working on a design-concept, which would be shared
with the MIAB and the public prior to the actual design work, he
advi sed.

2: 06: 07 PM

MR. YOST, in response to Senator French's earlier question on
the DOT&PF s decision to change ship size, answered that when
the departnent |ooked at a class of ship instead of a single
shuttle, the mssion also grew in terns of places the ferry
coul d serve. For exanple, in addition to Ketchikan and Prince
Rupert, the ferry could serve other runs, including the Prince
Wl liam Sound run. O her conponents were added to the vessel to
make the vessel able to handle any one of the routes, which also
made the vessel nore expensive. Further, building a steel ship
requires considering operational costs that nmust span the "50-60
year" vessel life. Thus, the departnent "backtracked" to
consi der one or two vessels that could work in a nore restricted
nunber of |ocations, but would also result in operational and
construction cost savings.

2:08: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON recalled that the ACF was scheduled to
be built this year, yet the changes only put the project six
mont hs behi nd schedul e.

COW SSI ONER KEMP sai d he was unsure of the tineline.

CAPTAIN FALVEY said that the DOT&PF had planned to award a
constructi on managenent general contract (CM3C) for the 350-foot
ACF in July. Currently, the DOT&PF hopes to deliver the new
desi gn by Novenber, which will be a few nonths behi nd schedul e

He pointed out a smaller ship is |less conplex to design, but the
departnment has a concept [for the design]. He enphasized the
RCORO configuration as being nore of an "ocean hull" design. The

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES -16- January 17, 2013



mai nl i ne vessels have forward side doors and require "sponsons”
that run the length of the ship forward and aft in order to
accommodate the side doors. He explained this nmechani sm creates
a trenendous poundi ng [when the vessel is underway]. He pointed
out the AWHS's MV Kennicott, MV Tustenena, and MV Lituya
vessels do not have "sponsons” but aft side doors. He
characterized this as one advantage of the "ocean hull"™ form
under consideration. The concept consists of a 275 to 278-foot
hull form that could carry approximately 55 cars, wthout
"sponsons,” simlar to vessels wused in offshore construction.
The proposed hull design is used in vessels that run in heavy
seaways. The concept includes a knight head's bow with side
doors at the back of the vessel, which would function well in
Lynn Canal, he said. He reported that ships get bigger
exponential ly. He said the MV Aurora and MV LeConte are 235
feet in length but reported that a 275-feet vessel increases
exponentially in its physical size. The DOT&PF is confident
with the proposed hull form which he anticipated would perform
as well as the 350-foot MV Taku, if not better, he said.

2:12: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON inquired as to whether the delay from
July to Novenber would include the public process and if the
project would be built in a shipyard in Al aska.

CAPTAI N FALVEY responded that the DOT&PF would continue to use
the construction nmanagenent general contracting (CM3C) nethod of
procur enent . He explained that under the CM3C, the shipyard is
consulted at an early design stage, as happened with the ACF
pr ocess. He said the CM3C nethod allows the state, naval
architects, and the shipyard to work together which elimnates
risk, he said. He related that each shipyard has different
capacities and the CM3C process allows the shipyard s strengths
to be incorporated into the design process. He anticipated the
CMEC nmethod will be used for the vessels, which also includes a
guar ant eed nmaxi mum price from the shipyard. Under the contract,
the state would then have the option, in conjunction w th naval
architects, to conpare estimates and [have the ship built]
outside Alaska if the price is deened unaccept abl e.

COM SSI ONER KEMP said the legislature passed a law to allow the
department contracting ability to use a shipyard in Al aska -
noting the only shipyards in Al aska are |ocated in Ketchikan and
Sewar d. He reiterated the CM3C process, as Captain Falvey
descri bed, noting the DOT&PF woul d negotiate the best price with
t he shipyard. The DOT&PF has successfully used the CM3C process

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES -17- January 17, 2013



for fish hatcheries in Anchorage and Fairbanks and is using the
process for the State Library Archives Miseum (SLAM project,
which is currently underway. He assured nenbers that the state
woul d negotiate the best price and does have the ability to
contract with shipyards in the Lower 48, if necessary.

COWM SSI ONER KEMP, referring to the design time slippage, said
the DOT&PF anticipates the new vessels would be built faster and
woul d neet the ACF s tineline for conpletion.

2:16: 49 PM

SENATOR EGAN acknow edged ferries expand the ANHS. He recalled
the state lengthened the nainline ferries [when they were
built]. He further recalled in 1961, his nother christened the
MV Ml aspi na, which was subsequently comm ssioned in 1963. The
MV Ml aspina is 50-years old and was built to operate in
hostil e weat her conditions, not for the cal m seas the Washi ngton
ferries traverse, he said. He further recalled testinony | ast
year before the legislative Transportation and Fi nance
commttees, with respect to funding, such that the ACF s purpose
was to reduce stress on the mainliners and allow ships |ike the
MV Mlaspina to be deployed to less hostile areas. He
reiterated the water conditions in Wshington are vastly
different than the ones on the Lynn Canal ferry run. He offered
his belief the MV LeConte has already had four or five
cancel lations thus far this year.

CAPTAIN FALVEY confirmed the MV LeConte has had four
cancel l ations in the past year or so.

SENATOR EGAN expressed further concern [over changes to the ACF
project] since the original plan was to redeploy a mainliner to
| ess hostile sea condi tions [ by bui | di ng t he ACF] .
Additionally, the seaworthiness of 50-year old vessels is at
risk, he noted. Wiile he said he appreciated the work the AVHS
and DOT&PF has taken to keep the vessels operating, the aging
fleet raises his concern that the fleet cannot be redepl oyed, if
necessary, [with the changes from the ACF to two shuttle
ferries]. He said his constituents are also concerned about a
potential "open deck"” concept, which he characterized as "a
formula for failure.”

COWM SSI ONER KEMP said the DOT&PF is currently at the conceptua
design phase for this project. He anticipated the design
concept report should be conpleted in one to two weeks, noting
the draft has just been reviewed. He then said:

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES - 18- January 17, 2013



| think you're going to be pleasantly surprised wth

what we cone up wth. | think you're going to find
vessels as every good as the Taku for sea keeping
characteristics. | think you're going to find --

we're going to see an increase in capacity, an
increase in flexibility, an increase in redundancy.

If one of these vessels goes down, you still have
anot her one. If the [MV] LeConte goes down it's
down. There's no redundancy. | think; 1 think if

we're patient and we | ook at the design concept report
and we open it up for public involvenment and we |et

the people know what we're doing - | think we'll be
fine. | think -- just a couple weeks - just give it
sone tinme.

2:21:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE, speaking as a pilot, said he assunes the
departnment knows the passenger ridership and has reviewed | oad
factors. He acknow edged the ferry system was not designed to
generate revenue, but asked whether the departnent has
considered ways to mnimze the per mle highway cost so the
result is an annual loss that is not too exorbitant.

COWMM SSI ONER KEMP agr eed. He acknow edged Representative Feige
has identified the departnent's specific m ssion. He said
Captain Falvey and his staff work "24-7" to make the AMHS system
run snoothly and in a cost efficient manner.

2:22: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE di scussed |oading and offloading designs,
noting bow or stern |loading as being the nost efficient nethod.
He acknow edged side loading is not the nost efficient |oading
met hod. He asked whether it wuld be nore effective to
st andardi ze dock design docks to avoid having to build multiple
features into the vessels.

COWM SSI ONER KEMP of fered his belief the departnment woul d al ways
need side doors for the mainliner ferries. He acknow edged one
capital 1i1nprovenent concept in Haines would be necessary to
allow for a bow egress; however he said that specific project
has been "on the books" for quite sonme tine. He recalled that
the prelimnary design was a federal-aid project necessary to
accommodate the fast ferries in Haines due to specific
differences in the dock design. He explained the fast ferries

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES -19- January 17, 2013



have a big ranp to the car deck, which necessitated the DOT&PF
to nmodify the ship design to match the ferry termnals. Thi s
proved cost effective rather than for the DOT&PF to revanp the
ferry term nal dock design. He concluded the AVHS and DOT&PF
have been "doing fine" wth vessel and ferry offloading design
costs.

2:24: 56 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON al so acknowl edged the aging fleet would require
nunmer ous replacenent vessels. She understood the dock design as
being nore costly; however, she wondered whether it would be
cost effective over time to change the dock design

COWM SSI ONER KEMP responded that the ferry terminals are multi-
use term nal s.

CAPTAI N FALVEY interjected that the AVHS owns 20 of the 35 ferry
termnals in Al aska. The remaining dock ownership ranges from
ownership by seafood plants to cities and conmunities. Further
the AVHS has nultiple classes of ferries, including mainline
vessel s, the "Aurora class," and shuttle ferries that serve the
3,500 mle system Thus, the AVHS has little control over total
expendi tures; however, the AVMHS has nmintained consistency wth
mai nl i ner costs and has standardized its vessels, he said.
Still, difficulties arise in containing costs due to the
| ogi stics, he added.

2:27:09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S, speaking as soneone from Southcentral
Al aska, related her wunderstanding the ACF project budget was
initially $120 mllion, but it "norphed" into sonething else.
She asked for clarification on what happened to the funding.
She asked what would keep the "$30 million ferries from norphing
and norphing." She acknowl edged that the department's
commi ssioners have changed, but other personnel remains the
sane.

COW SSI ONER KEMP answered that $116 to $117 million of the $120
mllion appropriation remains. The departnent noved quickly [in
changing the project scope], in part, due to the $20, 000-30, 000
per day costs for the ACF. He answered, with respect to the
guestion of "the norphing of new shuttle ferries,” that the
departnment anticipates instituting controls, noting the DOT&PF
has also hired a consultant to help with the concept. He
acknow edged the change represents a shift in managenent, but

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES - 20- January 17, 2013



suggested the design concept report should be «collectively
revi ewed. He offered his belief the DOT&PF is "on the right
track." As previously nentioned, the governor was very
concerned about the cost estinmate [overage] for the ACF project.
The DOT&PF consi dered "dipping into" the vessel replacenent fund

to make up the estimated $50 million shortfall; however, to do
so would affect replacenent costs for the MV Tustenena, he
sai d. He enphasized that every dollar counts and budgetary
controls are required on all vessel projects. He reiterated the
governor was determned to keep the ACF on budget. He offered
that the estinmated $30 nmillion per ferry "is long gone";

however, the department thinks it can purchase two ferries wth
t he remai ni ng funds avail abl e.

2:30: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS recall ed the consultant researched
t he RORO desi gn. He asked for the consultant's nane and a copy
of the report, if avail able.

COMW SSIONER  KEMP answered that the engineering firm was
Coastwi se [Corporation] from Anchorage. He said the ACF s
designer - who will be retained - is the Elliott Bay [Design
Group] in Seattle. He stated the DOT&PF has two experts as well
as its own experts.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS asked whether the $15-18 nillion
to nodify a ferry termnal creates independency or if inter-
operability exists between the different classes of vessels. He
further asked whether a RORO designed ferry would elimnate
mai nline ferries operating in Lynn Canal .

MR. YOST answered the proposed nodification would still allow
mainliners to still operate the Juneau to Haines run, in fact,
the AWHS would not <change its current operation, including
operating two weekly mainline runs in the sumrer and one in the
W nter. He explained the change would nean two shuttles would
cover the current MV Malaspina's daily operation from Juneau to
Hai nes and Skagway, and the return run. He said this

nodi fication is being done to specifically allow for continued
use of side-loading mainline vessels in Haines.

2:32: 14 PM
SENATOR BISHOP offered his support for the direction the

conmmi ssi oner's managenent decision. He said the "right hand has
to know what the left hand is doing and this "mssion creep"”

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES -21- January 17, 2013



m ght not have occurred if the "right hand knew what the |eft
hand was doing." He pointed out not all of the design perforned
on the ACF project is |ost. He related his understandi ng that
the matrix is not conplete since the departnent is stil
assenbling the shuttle ferry's design. He asked for an
opportunity to review the design matrix for the proposed ship
since he is interested in the propul sion, |ong-range alternative
fuels for cost savings, and whether the ship is expandable in
terms of fuel.

2:34: 01 PM

COWM SSI ONER KEMP continued with his discussion on funding and
t he proposed project tineline. He characterized the experience
of discovering the estimated ACF's cost overrun as "a real
pi ckle." He elaborated that [at the tine of discovery], the
departnment had just signed a contract with the shipyard to begin
design elenents, "tank tests" were being conducted in Norway,
and a host of things would soon accelerate spending [for the
project]. He explained that the departnment net with MIAB, but
was necessarily "noot" on the subject [on the ACF changes] while

options were being evaluated. "As | said, the governor was
st eadf ast . He did not want to exceed that anount. He val ues
the ferry system but he knows there is a better way of doing
busi ness,"” he said. He described the steps taken, noting the

DOT&PF made an announcenent in Ketchi kan, suspended its contract
with Elliott Bay [Design Goup], and noved forward with a

prelimnary design concept report. He said the vessel size
[ under consideration for the two shuttle ferries] is
approximately 280 feet and that the cost is "okay." He
reiterated his belief that people wll |Iike [the changes].

Wiile he was unsure exactly when the report would be finished,
he anticipated it should be forthcomng in a couple of weeks and
will be "the guiding light" for the Elliott Bay Design G oup
He reiterated [with the project changes] the AVHS woul d increase
its [fleet] capacity and flexibility, provide redundancy,
i ncrease opportunities for travel, reduce costs, and ultimately
create 15-25 pernanent jobs in Haines.

2:36:30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS asked whether a cost estimate
woul d be avail abl e upon desi gn concept conpl etion.

COW SSI ONER KEMP answered that a prelimnary design would be

avai l abl e, but the cost of any project "becones clearer as it
goes on." In further response to a question, Conm ssioner Kenp

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES -22- January 17, 2013



answered yes, sone type of prelimnary costs would be avail able
once the design concept is conpleted.

2:37:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWKINS, in reference to operating costs,
asked for cost conparisons of the two shuttle-class ferries
versus operating a single mainline ferry in Lynn Canal. He
asked whether the assunption is that it would be cheaper to
operate two snmaller shuttle ferries than it would be to operate
a mainline ferry to and from Juneau and Hai nes.

MR. YOST clarified the AVHS does not plan to run tw shuttles

roundtrip from Juneau to Hai nes. | nstead, he reported that one
shuttle would run from Juneau to Haines and the other would run
from Haines to Skagway. Currently, the mainline ferry passes

through Haines in either direction [of the Lynn Canal run from
Juneau to Skagway]; however, the AMHS can conduct the transfer
faster with a bow and stern door [proposed for the shuttle

ferries]. He clarified that the loading doesn't need to be
separated by destination when everyone on the vessel is headed
to the sane destination. Further, passengers destined for

Skagway woul d | oad onto the second vessel, which would result in
shorter |oading tines.

MR. YOST explained that security tinmes would also be sinplified
since everyone would depart the ferry [at Haines], which results
in less stringent security requirenents. He noted the security
concern arises when a vehicle remains on the ferry destined for
Skagway, but the driver disenbarks at Haines, which is renoved
when all passengers and vehicles are offloaded in Haines. He
characterized the process as being simlar to a Puget Sound
ferry operation, in which transfers enbark on a different ferry.
Additionally, the change could allow for two 12-hour operations,
al though the Haines to Skagway route does not take 12 hours to
conpl et e. He suggested the changes would likely allow for four
sai |l i ngs. Further, the overall crew required would be reduced
fromtwo crews of 7-10 to operate two shuttle ferry - 12-hour
runs - as conpared to the 23-30 crewrenbers necessary for the
ACF [to operate the Lynn Canal run]. He concluded the AMHS
woul d save in crew nunbers and operating costs due to changes in
t he vessel size.

2:40: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said he was inpressed at the nunbers of
mlitary who reside in Interior Al aska who use the ferries. He

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES -23- January 17, 2013



coomented he also looks forward to attracting to the "tank
testing" to Alaska [currently being conducted in Norway]. He
recall ed the comm ssioner nentioning 25 jobs would be created in
Hai nes and Skagway. He asked the reason to add nore crew given
that current ferry traffic exists.

CAPTAI N FALVEY anticipated that the crews would be permanently
enpl oyed on the shuttle ferries. The day vessel's crew would
live ashore, just as the MV LeConte's crew currently does. The
boats spend the night in their hone port, he said.

2:42: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS recal l ed t he conm ssi oner
menti oned he had reviewed a prelimnary report. He i ndicated
substantial public concern has been raised about runors on the
fundanental design aspect from closed to an open deck. He

specifically asked whether Conm ssioner Kenp could answer
whet her [the proposed shuttle ferries] would have an open or
cl osed deck.

COWM SSI ONER KEMP answered no. He explained the DOT&PF is stil
wor ki ng on the vessel design and will need to bring in its main
consul tant: Elliot Bay [Design Goup] - the naval architects
He reiterated that the draft report would be conpleted in a
coupl e of weeks.

2:47.12 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttees, the joint

nmeeting between the House and Senate Transportation Standing
Comm ttees was adjourned at 2:47 p.m

JT. H'S TRA COMW TTEES - 24- January 17, 2013



